WI-63 1887-88
Faith Community Church
(Old Asbury M. E. Church)
Salisbury
Public worship
A benchmark in the history of Methodism for Wicomico County is the founding of
Asbury United Methodist Church, established in 1778 during the itinerant ministries of
Freeborn Garrettson. Worshiping in private houses or barns during its earliest years,
the fledgling Salisbury congregation purchased a lot from Mrs. Noah Nelms in 1801.
Construction of a frame church, popularly referred to as the “Old Red Meeting House,”
took place shortly afterwards, and small improvements were made over the course of the
following fifty years. More formally known as “Ebenezer Chapel,” the red frame
meeting house was replaced in 1856 with a new frame church that burned in the October
1886 fire. Within seven months following the conflagration that destroyed much of
Salisbury, the Methodist Episcopal congregation, known since 1872 as Asbury, had
drawn together enough funding to start construction of a new church. On July 16, 1887
the Salisbury Advertiser announced:
Work has commenced this week on the new M. E. Church here. The building
will be a handsome stone structure.... The roof will be of slate and somewhat
pyramidal in shape. Mr. E. S. Centman [Sentman] of Port Deposit has the
contract for the stone work, and Mr. Geo. Downing, of Wilmington, is
superintending the balance of the structure.
The design of the church, conceived by Baltimore architect Jackson C. Gott,
followed a popular architectural trend for the time in the Romanesque Revival style.

The square S0' by 50' main sanctuary, covered by a broad pyramidal slate roof, was

dominated on its northwest corner by the two story entrance and bell tower surmounted
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by a broach spire. Executed in rusticated stone with round arched openings and corner
turrets, the style was first popularized by New York architect Henry Hobson Richardson
during the 1870s and 1880s. In contrast to the more traditional axial church plan with a
center nave and side aisles, the new Asbury was built on a diagonal axis with the pulpit
directly across from the comer entrance. The newness of the design to Salisbury
encouraged comment. The May 26, 1888 issue of the Salisbury Advertiser stated that,
The building is a handsome structure of Port Deposit stone, laid in red mortar.
The main building is 50 x 50 ft. with a wing for a lecture room 40 x 50. The
edifice is surmounted by a belfry and spire 86 ft. high. The roof is slate with
copper trimmings. The main auditorium is furnished diagonally, with the pulpit
in the corner opposite the main entrance, which is through the tower. Behind
the pulpit is an organ chamber 14 ft. square. The interior of the building is a
model of workmanship and architectural design.
The cost of the new building reached $25,000, which was substantially underwritten by
William H. Jackson. In 1928 the Asbury congregation erected a large addition, also in
stone, on the north end of the 1887 church. Relatively plain by contrast, the front door
was enriched by a Gothic Revival arch. Fixed in the northwest corner is a datestone
with carved numerals, “1778-1928.” By the 1950s the Asbury congregation had
expanded sufficiently to outgrow its North Division Street location. A new site for the
congregation at the south end of Salisbury was deemed wise decision since three
Methodist churches and the Presbyterian church were located within a two block area of
one another in the Newtown district. The 1887 Romanesque church was sold to the
Faith Community congregation, while the 1928 educational hall was acquired by the

Allen Baptist congregation, which had built a Colonial Revival church next door in

1937.
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7. Description Survey No. WI-63

Condition Check one Check one

___excellent ___deteriorated ____ unaltered X original site

X _good —_ruins _X altered __ moved date of move
— ftair —_ unexposed

Prepare both a summary paragraph and a general description of the resource and its
various elements as it exists today.

Faith Community Church, formerly Asbury Methodist Episcopal Church, stands on
the east side of North Division Street north of the intersection with US Route 50
in the center of Salisbury, Wicomico County, Maryland. The single-story church
faces west with the principal gable roof oriented on a north/south axis.

Built in 1887-88, the single-story stone church, following an asymmetrical
plan, is erected of Port Deposit granite. The main body of the church is squarish
in shape and is covered by a steeply pitched pyramidal roof sheathed with slate.
Rising at the northwest corner of the sanctuary block is a two-story entrance and
bell tower capped by an octagonal broach spire. Extending from the southeast
corner is a single-story lateral wing. Attached to the north side of the main block
is a single-story gable roofed wing that joins the three-story educational building,
erected in 1928, to the 19™-century church. During the mid 1950s, the Asbury
Methodist congregation decided to relocate their church to a lot in south Salisbury
along Camden Avenue. The 1887 building was sold to the Faith Community
congregation, while the 1928 educational hall was purchased by the Allen Baptist
congregation next door.

The rusticated granite church is supported by a projecting stone foundation
defined by a watertable. The rusticated stone, laid in semi-coursed fashion, has a
reddish-brown mortar. Most of the roofs and the church spire are covered with
slate. The entrance and bell tower, which marks the northwest correr of the main
block, is fixed on an diagonal in relationship to the sanctuary. A large double door
arched entrance features 21-panel doors topped by a multi-pane colored glass
transom. Fixed at the top of the arch is a stone embossed “A.D. 1887.” The
second floor of the tower is pierced by a paired double arch belfry opening
featuring smooth stone columns that support round arches of rusticated stones. A
series of four square openings pierce the wall below the belfry arches. Above the
paired arches is a series of granite modillion blocks that define the eave liae of the
tower. The octagonal spire is accented with small conical turrets, one on each
corner. The stone turrets are capped by conical slate roofs topped by metal caps.

The west side of the sanctuary block is defined by a series of five round
arched windows filled with colored glass. The series of windows is sheltered by a
shed roofed extension of the pyramidal roof, and the roof is underpinned by a row
of stick brackets finished with chamfered edges. Extending across the wall at the
below the edge of the roof is a row of granite cornice blocks. A shed roof dormer
is centered on the pyramidal roof. The front of the dormer is pierced by a series of
four colored glass windows. The roof are sides are sheathed with slate. Rising
atop the pyramidal roof'is a pyramidal roofed cupola topped by a metal cross.
Each side of the cupola has four square colored glass windows. The southwest

(Continued)
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eriod Areas of Significance—Check and justify below
___ prehistoric ____ archeology-prehistoric ____ community planning ____ landscape architecture X __ religion
—1400-1499 ____ archeology-historic —__ conservation — law — Science
— 1500-1599 ____ agriculture —___economics — literature —_sculpture
___1600-1699 X ___ architecture ___ education ___ military ___social/
— 1700-1799 ___ art ___engineering — music humanitarian
X _1800-1899 ___ commerce —_exploration/settiement ___ philosophy — theater
— 1900~ ____ communications — industry —— politics/government ___ transportation
—_ invention - other (specify)
Specific dates 1887-88 Builder/Architect %gggggnA? - Gott, architect
check: Applicable Criteria: _A _ B x C _ D E. 5. Sentman, masonry contractor
and/or
Applicable Exceptiont: _ A _ B _C _D _E _F _G
Level of Significance: _ national _ state X local

Prepare both a summary paragraph of significance and a general statement of history and
support.

A benchmark in the history of Methodism for Wicomico County is the founding of
Asbury United Methodist Church, established in 1778 during the itinerant ministries of
Freeborn Garrettson. Worshiping in private houses or barns during its earliest years,
the fledgling Salisbury congregation purchased a lot from Mrs. Noah Nelms in 1801."
Construction of a frame church, popularly referred 1o as the “Old Red Meeting House,”

B took place shortly afterwards, and small improvements were made over the course of
the following fifty years. More formally known as “Ebenezer Chapel,” the red frame
meeting house was replaced in 1856 with a new frame church that burned in the
October 1886 fire. Within seven months following the conflagration that destroyed
much of Salisbury, the Methodist Episcopal congregation, known since 1872 as
Asbury,? had drawn together enough funding to start construction of a new church. On
July 16, 1887 the Salisbury Advertiser announced:

Work has commenced this week on the new M. E. Church here. The building
will be a handsome stone structure. The main auditorium will be 50 x 50 feet.
At the northwest corner will be a tower 86 ft. high, through which will be the
main entrance. The main aisle will extend diagonally across the church from
the main entrance to the pulpit, which will be located in the southeast corner.
From the main building will extend to the North a Sunday School room 42 x 50
ft. separated from the main auditorium by folding doors. The roof will be of
slate and somewhat pyramidal in shape. Mr. E. S. Centman (Sentman) of Port
Deposit has the contract for the stone work, and Mr. Geo. Downing, of
Wilmington, is superintending the balance of the structure’

The design of the church, conceived by Baltimore architect Jackson C. Gott, followed

! The Salisbury Times, “Asbury History Dates Back 185 years,” March 2, 1963.
2E. C. Hallman, The Garden of Methodism, p. 343-44.

3 Salisbury Advertiser, July 16, 1887.
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7.1 DESCRIPTION

Faith Community Church

(Asbury M. E. Church)

Salisbury, Wicomico County, Maryland

corner of the sanctuary block is defined by a stone turret that is topped by a conical roof
of slate. The top of the cone is capped with a metal cover and finial. The south side of
the sanctuary is an asymmetrically designed wall with a series of three round arched
windows sheltered by a shed-roofed extension of the pyramidal roof. Like the shed roof
on the west side, it is supported by a series of stick brackets finished with chamfered
edges. West (left) of the shed roof'is a pair of colored windows fitted within a
segmental arched opening. Below the line of the slate roof, the rusticated granite wall is
defined by a row of cornice blocks. Centered on the roof is a long shed roofed dormer
with four colored glass windows. Extending to the southeast on a diagonal line with the
main block is a side entrance wing of rusticated stone.

The north side of the main block is largely covered by a single story gable roofed
administrative and educational building built at the same time as the sanctuary block.
Long shed roofed dormers pierced by colored glass windows mark the roof. A centrally
located side entrance is sheltered by a shed roof portico pierced by round arched
openings. The north end of the administrative wing is terminated in a parapet gable
pierced by an elaborate round arched window opening filled with colored glass in leaded
panes.

Attached to the north side of the 1887 church is a three-story, granite wing
erected in 1928 as an expansion of the Sunday School and meeting rooms. The large
eli-shaped granite addition is marked by a datestone on its northwest corner. The stone
is embossed “1778-1928.” Centered on the Division Street elevation is a Gothic arched
entrance. The three floors are pierced by paired and single window openings. The
medium pitched hip roof is covered with asphalt shingles and the eaves are open with
the rafter ends exposed.

The interior was not seen.
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Salisbury Advertiser, May 26, 1888
The New Asbury Church Dedicated by Bishop Foster

The new Asbury Methodist Episcopal Church, which has just been completed at a cost
of $25,000 was formally dedicated last Sunday... The dedicatory sermon was preached
by Bishop Foster, of Boston...

The building, which will seat from 900 to 1000, including the lecture room, was
crowded. After the services Rev. Mr. Martindale announced to the audience that there
was a debt of $8,000 resting upon the church. The taking of subscriptions was
immediately begun and resulted in raising of nearly $2,000.

The building is a handsome structure of Port Deposit stone, laid in red mortar.
The main building is 50 x 50 ft. with a wing for lecture room 40 x 50. The edifice is
surmounted by a belfry and spire 86 ft. high. The roof'is slate with copper trimmings.
The main auditorium is furnished diagonally, with the pulpit in the corner opposite the
main entrance, which is through the tower. Behind the pulpit is an organ chamber 14 ft.
square. The interior of the building is a model of workmanship and architectural design.
Mr. Jackson C. Gott, of Baltimore, is the architect; the execution of the design has been
under the charge of Mr. Geo. Downing, of Wilmington, formerly of this town. The
building is of Romanesque style of architecture.
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Is Beauty And Splendor

Irmediately  following  World
War 11, when service personnel
were returning home and life was
returning o normalcy, Asbury
Mothodist Church  members  be-
gan to think of enlarging their
church facilities,

A building committee asked
archilects to make studies and
recoinmendations as o how the
sanctuary could be enlarged and
improved. The committee soon
found that all ideas and sugges-
tions involved additional ground
which could not be obtained.

Commiltee members were Av-
ery W. Hall, John W. Downing

Sr., W. N. Jackson Sr., W. H
Jackson 1I, O. W. Dashiell, Thom-
as C. Roe, George P. Chandler,

Everett Hearn, S. Norman Hol-jone

land Sr., Miss Dorothy Mitchell,
and Mrs. Eugene Messick,

The Peninsula Methodist Con-
ference, too. was beginning to
think of moving Methodist church-
es to the outskirts of the city in-
stead of having three large
churches clustered in one section
of Salisbury in a short five-block
area.

IN THE EARLY 1950's a study
of Methodism in Salisbury was

made and resulted in the deci-
sion that two of the three large
downtown churches should move,
to the south end of the city
and another to the east.

After many meetings and much
thought, Asbury voted to move
to an 11-acre site on Camden Ave.
Ext. which had been pnrchxled

Asburians agreed on a modi-
fied brick and marble colonial de-
sign with alternates to omit the
chapel and & new Fellowship Hall.
The committee began to work on
the selection of a heating and
lighting system and the proper
place to put the new organ.

April of 1959 found the commit-

for $63,000, In 1955, inter

with- urchnecu began and many
were held in which
members expressed their opin-
jons and views. On April 11, 1958,
a contract was signed with Har-

working on problems such as
the type boiler and fuel to be

fm:shmgs.Bytheendo(the

old E. a Philadelphi

been

architect.

had
held nnd plans had been approv-

ed and arrangements for bids and
financing made.

In March of 1960, J. Roland Da-
shiell and Sons Co. of Salisbury
had submitted the lowest bid for
the new church in the amount of
$1,307,660. That was still teo high
and figures were cut, plans modi-
fied and omissions allowed for.
It took nearly a year to do this.
A final figure of $921,259 was
agreed upon on Feb. 14, 1962

EVERYTHING FROM good ac-
coustical equipment !o pleasing
colors for the walls in a variety

er atiractive furni-hings in the
colonial style had been checked

There was niwch enthusiusm for
a three lancet leaf gold winduw
to be in the rear of the chancel
with 15 colored medallions de-
picting the bfe of Christ ang the
history of Methodistn, its found-
er, John Wesley, and the early
civeuit riders whe brought Meth-
odism to the Eustern Shove. Ho
or was fo be paid to Freebur
Garrettson who brought the nev
religion to Salisbury. and to Fran’
cis Asbury for whom the church
is named.

of shades, pew cushions, and oth-

Tt was Nov. 11, 1778. The Rev-
olutionary War V\as in full prog-
ress and Washington's troops at
Valley Forge were sulfering from
cold and hunger.

Freeborn Garrettson, 26, one of
the first native Methodist preach-
ers, was riding from Broad Creck,
Somerset County, to Salisbury,
alse Somerset County, to preach
al the invitation of Mrs. Noah
Nehins, wife of a prominent Salis-

Spire 155 feet high and marble coluxﬁns gr;ice new Asbury Methodist Church.

friends in Delaware and her en-
thusiasm  for his preaching
prompted her to invite him to
her home to speak 1o her friends.

BUT “THESE new Methodists”
had enemies everywhere they

the sheriff was sent to take -Mr.
Garrettson to jail. The sheriff
was prevailed upon to release his
prisoner and he went on to his

bury merchant.
Mrs. Nelms had beard the
youug preacher when she visitedl

next assignment.
This meeting marked the be-

tried to spread their religion and

Salisbury.
The new church group did not
have smooth salhng Opposition

ginnings of the Methodist Society

and Asbury Methodist Chureh of|

self with the new religion and he
and Mrs. Nelmswere\mdoubted-

The society purchased a lot “in

_|the vicinity of Salisbury,” since

Salisbury did not then extend to
the church property, from Mrs.
Nelms for $50 to be paid in in-

ojly the first in Salis-

and in 1801 built the
first church. This is the property
on which Asbury Church has stood
for 162 years. The small red
frame building was known as the
Old Red Meeting House.

In 1818, the chapel was plaster-
ed and a stove installed. This
meeting house was occupied until

Many members felt that in awd-
dition to the windov desigued hv
the avchitect, they vould want thie
old memorial windons and pla-
ques 10 be a pari of the new
church. They decided to Love a
memorial corridur ulonpside the
sancteary and to take the naie
plates from memorial windovs,
the complete Shepherd and Flock
and the Railroad Windows aud
mount them in Memorial Corri-
dor. The corridor was to be light-

ed 50 they could casily be seen.

THE ST. FRANCIS of Assissi
windows they decided to store and
use in the chapel when it is buailt

Financing was described by the
pastor, the Rev. J. Robert Mack-
ey, as tougher thun the design
planning but finaily. the commit-
tee made arrungements to bor-
row $300.000 from the Salisbury
National Bank, the Fist National
Bank of Baltimore. and the Sav-
ings Bank of Baltimore. The loun
is to be repaid in 15 years m
monthly payments of $3.376 at un
interest rate of 6 per cemt

Cushwa  oversice brick wus
chosen with the geape vise it
specified. The best accoustical ae-

rungements vere made

The color scheme of the wrchi-
tect waus ed By Miss hoo-
thy Micchell local attst wid

member ol the clach. A Cathe-
dral or cherry ted was choscn
for the curpet vn the marble Hoor
of the sanctuary with pew cush-
jons of rose beige velvet. The wir
dows of the sanctuary are narrow
and of clear glass and white flut
ed columns are at intervals along
the walls.

Columns on the front of the

(See CHURCH, Page 4

Asbury History Dates Back 185 Years

was built on the site of the new
stone church at a cost of $3300.
The old meeting house was torn
down and a small church school
building put up and used as a
temporary postoffice until the fire

built from materials from the old
meeting

In 1837, the present stone church
was built and has given 8 vears
of continuous service.

THE DEED to the property

1836 when a new frame church

(See HISTORY, Page 9)
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THE SALISB

New Asbury

SALISBURY, MARYLAND, SATURDAY, MARCH 2, 1963

urch Here

Is Beauty And Splendor

Immediately  following World
War II. when service personnel
were returning home and life was
returning to normalcy, Asbury
Methodist Church members be-
gan to think of enlarging their
church facilities.

A building committee asked
architects to make studies and
recommendations as te how the
sanctuary could be enlarged and
improved. The commiitee soon
found that all ideas and sugges-
tions involved additional ground
which could not be obtained.

Committee members were Av-

ery W. Hall, John W. Downing

§r., W. N. Jackson Sr, W, H.
Jackson II, O. W. Dashiell, Thom-
as C. Roe, George P. Chandler,
Everett Hearn, S. Norman Hol-
land Sr., Miss Dorothy Mitchell,
and Mrs. Eugene Messick,

The Peninsula Methodist Con-
ference, 00, was beginning to
think of moving Methodist church-
es to the outskirts of the city in-
stead of having three large
churches clustered in one section

made and resulted in the deci-
sion that two of the three large
|downtown churches should move,
one to the south end of the city
and another to the east.

After many meetings and much
thought, Asbury wvoted to move
to an 1l-acre site on Camden Ave.
Ext. which had been
for $63,000. In 1955, interviews
with architects began and many
i were held in which

of Salisbury in a short five-block
area.

members expressed their opin-

a contract was signed with H:

ions and views. On April 11, 1956, i

Asburians agreed on a modi-|ed and arrangements for bids andjer attractive furnishings in the
fied brick and marble colonial de-|financing made. colonial style had been checked
sign with alternates to omit the| In March of 1960, J. Roland Da-| There was much enthusiasm for
chapel and a new Fellowship Hall {shiell and Sons Co. of Salisbury|a three lancet leal geld window
The committee began to work onfhad submitted the lowest bid forjto be in the rear of the chancel
the selection of a heating and|the new church in the amount of (with 15 colored medallions de-
lighting system and the proper|$1,307.660. That was still too high{picting the life of Christ and the

new organ. and figures were cut, plans modi-{history of Methodism. its found-

April of 1959 found the commit-{fied .and omissions allowed for.|er, John Wesley, and the early

on as|It took pearly a year to do this.[circuit riders who brought M

boiler and fuel to be|A final figure of $921,259 wasodism to the Easlern Shore. Ho
used, where to air condition and(2greed upon on Feb. 14, 1962. |or was to be paid 1o Freebor:
use| - -ie Garrettson who brought the nev
* EVERYTHING FROM good ac-|religion to Salisbury, and to Fran:
3 equipment to pleasing|cis Asbury for whom the church

i . f-*the | coustical c
year,” many meetings>had-been!colors for the walls in a variety|is named.

IN THE EARLY 1950°s a study
in Salish

old E. Wagoner, = Philadelpbial

of Methodi v was

'held and:plans-had beea approv-'of shades, pew cushions, and oth-| Many members felt that in ad-
} dition to the window designed by
the architect, thev would want the
old memorial windows and pla-
ques to be a part of the new
church. They derided fo have a
memorial corridor alonpside the
sanctuary and lo take the name
plates from memorial windmws,
the complete Shepherd and Flack
and the Railroad Windows and
mount them in Memorial Corri-
dor. The corridor was lo be light-
ed 20 they could eanily be seen.

THF, ST. FRANCIS of Assissi
windows they decided ta store and
use in the chapel when it is built.

Financing was described by the
pastor, the Rev. J. Rohert Mack.
ey. as tougher than the design
planning but finally. the commit-
tee made arrangements to bor-
row $400.000 from the Salisbury
National Bank, the First National
Bank of Baitimore. and the Sav-
ings Bank of Baltimore. The loan
is to be repaid in 15 years in
monthly payments of $3.376 at an
interest rate of 6 per cent.

Cushwa over-size brick was
chosen with the grape vine joint
specified. The best accoustical ur-
rangements were made.

The color scheme of the archi-
tect was approved by Miss Dovo-
thy Mitchell. local artist and a
member of the church. A catlie-
dral or cherry red was chosen
for the earpet on the marble Honr
of the sanctuary with pew cusie
ions of rose beige velve!. The wir
dows of the sanctuary ave e
and of clear glass and while flnts
ed columns are af inlervals alony
the walls.

Columns on the front of the

Spire 155 feet high and marble columns grace new Asbury Methodist Church.

(See CHURCH, Page 4

Asbury History Dates Back 185 Years

this event, there was
li.  opposition to Methodism.
William James associated hi
LTS B I A PR

and Ashury Methodist Church of
Salisbury.
Tha aew church group did nol

o P,

Tt was Nov, 11, 1778, The l".r\'~‘fric‘nd< in Delaware and her en-
otutionary War was in {ull proz.ithusiasm  for his  preaching
ress ond Waskinatan's boaps atlpeompted her o invite him ta
T . B ) [ o

»‘Sah:hn

The society purchased a lot “in
the vicinity of Sahisbury.” since
did not then extend to

et

was built on the site ol the new
stone church at a cost of S350,
The old veeatmn fore o was taen

e
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Class rooms are spacious with chalk
boards, sheives. and plenty of closet

Continued From Page One

HISTORY

dated Aug. 22, 1807. called the
church the Methodist Episcopal
Ebenezer Chapel. On Sept. 11,
1872, the church was incorporat-
ed as the Asbury Methodist
Church of Salisbury.

The new church was built of
Fort Deposit granite and a new
parsonage was also built and do-
nated to the church by William
H. Jackson who had contributed
generously to the new church.
The parsonage on N. Division St.
e still in use.

Other nofeworthy facts about
the church are a rvevival which
began in 1823 and lasted for two

is atllached

religious fervor and the first Sun-
day school which was organized
in 1837 and met at .2 pm. on
Sundays. A Monday night class
was organized and David Vance
was leader from 1823 to 1862
when he died. Mr. Vance had
won mnational promi as a

space. In each room, a movie screen

to the wall

youth of the county and for serv-
ice in nearby Chinco-
teague. It has housed many civic
activities including Girl Scout
hobby shows, exhibits, dramatic
and musical eutertainments, and
was dedicated on Oct. 21, 1928

leader against slavery and as
head of a temperance movement.

THE SOCIAL and educational
building. Fellowship Hall. came
into being in 1928 when Mr. Jack-
son malched every $100 contri-
hution with a $40 contribution.
The cost of the building and fur-
nishinge amounted to $102.000,

Asbury’s Fellowship Hall pro-
vided the first church - centered

when a $10,000 subscription was
made to the church.

In 1947, the church had grown
so large that parking had be-
come a problem and a‘parking
lot on Gamﬂmm Place,~ across
from the was purchased
for the use of members..The
next year, the present minister,
the Rev. J. Robert Mackey, came
to the church-which has .grown
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WE ARE VERY PROUD
TO HAVE TAKEN
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CONSTRUCTION OF
THE NEW ASBURY
METHODIST CHURCH

WOOD RICHARDSON
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Furnishing The Shore For 35-Years With The Finest In Roofing And
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SALISBURY, MD.
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8.1 SIGNIFICANCE
Faith Community Church (Asbury M. E. Church)
Salisbury, Wicomico County, Maryland

a popular architectural trend for the time in the Romanesque Revival style. The square
50' by 50' main sanctuary, covered by a broad pyramidal slate roof, was dominated on
its northwest corner by the two story entrance and bell tower surmounted by a broach
spire. Executed in rusticated stone with round arched openings and corner turrets, the
style was first popularized by New York architect Henry Hobson Richardson during the
1870s and 1880s. In contrast to the more traditional axial church plan with a center
nave and side aisles, the new Asbury was built on a diagonal axis with the pulpit directly
across from the corner entrance. The newness of the design to Salisbury encouraged
comment. The May 26, 1888 issue of the Salisbury Advertiser stated that,

The building is a handsome structure of Port Deposit stone, laid in red mortar.
The main building is 50 x 50 ft. with a wing for a lecture room 40 x 50. The
edifice is surmounted by a belfry and spire 86 ft. high. The roof is slate with
copper trimmings. The main auditorium is furnished diagonally, with the pulpit
in the corner opposite the main entrance, which is through the tower. Behind
the pulpit is an organ chamber 14 ft. square. The interior of the building is a
model of workmanship and architectural design.*

The cost of the new building reached $25,000, which was substantially underwritten by
William H. Jackson.’ In 1928 the Asbury congregation erected a large addition, also in
stone, on the north end of the 1887 church. Relatively plain by contrast, the front door
was enriched by a Gothic Revival arch. Fixed in the northwest corner is a datestone
with carved numerals, “1778-1928.” By the 1950s the Asbury congregation had
expanded sufficiently to outgrow its North Division Street location. A new site for the
congregation at the south end of Salisbury was also deemed wise since three Methodist
churches and the Presbyterian church were located within a two block area of one
another in the Newtown district. The 1887 Romanesque church was sold to the Faith
Community congregation, while the 1928 educational hall was acquired by the Allen
Baptist congregation, which had built a Colonial Revival church next door in 1937.

* Salisbury Advertiser, May 26, 1888.

5 Hallman, p. 344.
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